
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with physical limitations that may tend to restrict access to or participation in this 
meeting should contact the County Administrator’s office (231-779-9453) at least twelve (12) hours prior to the scheduled start of the meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wexford County 
 

 
 

Gary Taylor, Chair 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

The Wexford County Board of Commissioners will hold a regular meeting on Wednesday, July 15, 2020 
beginning at 4:00 p.m. in the Commissioners’ Room of the Historic Courthouse in Cadillac, MI, 49601. 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
D. ADDITIONS / DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
E. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
F. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
G. PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS 

1. Mid-Michigan Medical Examiner Annual Report (Lisa Kaspriak, MMMEG Administrator) .......... 1 
H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board welcomes all public input. 
 

I. CONSENT AGENDA 
The purpose of the consent agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be dealt with by one 
Commission motion without discussion.  Any member of the Commission may ask that any item on the consent agenda be 
removed therefrom and placed elsewhere for full discussion.  Such requests will be automatically respected. 
 

If any item is not removed from the consent agenda, the action noted on the agenda is approved by motion of the Commission to 
adopt the consent agenda. 
 

1. Approval of the July 1, 2020, Regular Meeting Minutes ....................................... 16 
 

J. AGENDA ITEMS 
1. FY 2021 Budget Calendar (Finance 7/9/2020) ............................................................ 19 
2. Bid Award – Historic Courthouse Windows (Finance 7/9/2020) .................................. 22 
3. Canteen Services of Northern Michigan (Finance 7/9/2020) ....................................... 33 
4. New Procedure for Grant Applications (Janet Koch, Administrator) ................................ 48 
5. Ratification of First Responder Hazard Pay Premium Program (Finance 7/9/2020) .... 49 
6. Budget Amendment(s) (Finance 7/9/2020) .................................................................. 50 

K. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT .................................................................................... 51 
L. CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Notice of Hearing-Consumers Energy Company ............................................... 52 
M. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
N. LIAISON REPORTS  
O. BOARD COMMENTS 
P. CHAIR COMMENTS 
Q. ADJOURN 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM 

FROM: Janet Koch, County Administrator 
FOR MEETING DATE: July 15, 2020 
SUBJECT: Annual Report Presentation – Mid-Michigan Medical Examiner Group 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 
Ms. Lisa Kaspriak, Mid-Michigan Medical Examiner Group Administrator, will present the 2019 
Annual Report for Mid-Michigan. 

G.1.

1



Wexford County

2019 Annual Report

Mid Michigan Medical Examiner Group

, 

Last Revised: July 8, 2020

2



2

3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13

Table of Contents

Table of Contents
Message to the Board of Commissioners and Citizens of Wexford
County
Medical Examiner Staff
Types of Deaths Reportable to the Medical Examiner
Wexford County Medical Examiner Cases
Manner of Death
Accidental Death by Type
Accidental Deaths-Motor Vehicle Crashes
Suicide by Means
Homicide Deaths
Death by Age Group
Gift of Life Organ and Tissue Donation

2 3



Message to the Board of Commissioners and Citizens
of Wexford County
The Wexford County Medical Examiner's Office investigates sudden, violent, unexpected, and suspicious
deaths that occur in Wexford County. The Office of the Medical Examiner certifies death after investigation
and postmortem examination and issues the death certificate as required by law. Complete findings of the
death investigation are distributed to families and law enforcement agencies as appropriate.

The main duties of the Office of the Medical Examiner are to determine the cause and manner of death, and
certify deaths that are reported to the medical examiner. The cause of death is the disease process or injury
that resulted in death. There are thousands of diseases and injuries that may result in death. The manner of
death is a classification in which a determination is made regarding whether the death resulted from natural
causes, homicide, suicide, or an accident. On occasion, the manner of death is classified as indeterminate.

The collaboration between the Medical Examiner's Office, Law Enforcement, and Prosecutor's Office has
grown extremely strong.  Information collected during the investigation helps clarify the circumstances, such
as the sequence of events prior to death. Immediate coordination and communication of offices during an
investigation helps lead to the arrest and successful conviction of suspects in a homicide cases. Because
deaths occur around the clock, medical examiner staff members are available 24 hours a day, 365 days per
year.

With the skill and experience of the medical examiner investigators and board-certified forensic pathologists,
we believe the quality of death investigations in Wexford County are among the best in the State. Continual
training of the medical examiner investigators ensures quality comprehensive case work.

Our staff and investigators also extend their duties to the living by answering questions and addressing
concerns regarding deaths within the county. Medical examiner investigators frequently make personal
contact with family members of a deceased and assist them by providing appropriate answers regarding the
circumstances of the death.  Our 25 years of Medical Examiner Experience has provided us with the
knowledge of efficiently executing national standards of death scene investigation with consideration of the
needs of rural northern Michigan.

The pandemic provided us the opportunity to really practice our mass fatality readiness and collaboration of
each of the county emergency managers.  Preparing verbally and on paper is one thing but having to make
the serious preparedness practices was another.  We are pleased to report that our system is more solid than
ever before.

We extend our sincere gratitude to the Wexford County Board of Commissioners for their support of the
medical examiner program and the services we provide to the citizens of the Wexford County.

3 4



Medical Examiner Staff
Dr. Paul Wagner Chief Medical Examiner
David G. Turner D-ABMDI Chief Investigator
Lisa Kaspriak ME Administrator
Sally Momany, D-ABMDI Medical Examiner Investigator
Jennyfer Walker Medical Examiner Investigator
Ashleigh Butler Medical Examiner Investigator
Kimberly Oeverman Medical Examiner Investigator
Rebecca Yonkman Medical Examiner Investigator
Nicole Hales Administrative Assistant
Jennifer Sprik Administrative Assistant

4 5



Types of Deaths Reportable to the Medical Examiner
The Michigan County Medical Examiner Law, Act 181, P.A. of 1953, as amended, and the Michigan Public
Health Code, Act 368, P.A. of 1978, as amended, mandates that specific types of death be referred to the
Medical Examiner for investigation (see list below). These deaths include sudden and unexpected deaths,
accidental deaths, and violent deaths. The medical examiner has the authority under these Acts to order an
autopsy at any time it is deemed necessary to determine or confirm the cause and manner of death.

Deaths Reportable to the Medical Examiner:

Violent death (e.g., strangulation, gunshot, stabbing, poisoning, etc.)
Accidental deaths (e.g., falls, drowning, motor vehicle collisions, burns, overdose, etc.)
Death of a prisoner (e.g., deaths in any county or city jail while imprisoned or in custody).
Suspicious Circumstances (e.g., Unidentified Bodies or events surrounding death)
Sudden and Unexpected deaths (e.g., all deaths during a surgical procedure, in recovery,
anesthesia-related, unexpected natural death, occupational-related deaths)*
Without medical attendance within 48 hours of death:
In cases of chronic illness, the attending physician may sign the death certificate if s/he can be
reasonably certain of the cause of death.
Death of a mother due to an abortion.
Unexpected infant deaths

The medical examiner may order an autopsy for any of the reportable deaths listed above.

5 6



Wexford County Medical Examiner Cases
Population 33,003
Cases Reported to Medical Examiner 99
Number of deaths certified after Autopsy  5
Number of deaths certified after Toxicology   21
Case Review for Cremation Permits   217
Unclaimed Bodies   1
Exhumations  0
   

 

6 7



Manner of Death

7 8



Accidental Death by Type

8 9



Accidental Deaths-Motor Vehicle Crashes

9 10



Suicide by Means

10 11



Homicide Deaths

11 12



Death by Age Group

12 13



Gift of Life Organ and Tissue Donation

13 14



14 15



DRAFT

WEXFORD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting *Wednesday, July 1, 2020 

Meeting called to order at 4:00 p.m. by Chairman Taylor. 

Roll Call: Present- Commissioners Joe Hurlburt, Michael Musta, Ben Townsend, Mike 
Bengelink, Mike Bush, Gary Taylor, Judy Nichols, and Brian Potter. 

Absent-  Commissioner Julie Theobald 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Additions/Deletions to the Agenda- None 

Approval of the Agenda 
MOTION by Comm Musta, seconded by Comm Nichols to approve the agenda, as 
presented. 

All in favor. 

Employee Recognition- 
David Batten was presented with his certificate for 15 years of service by Comm Taylor. 

Melissa Alderman-Bismack was presented with her certificate for 20 years of service by 
Comm Bengelink.

Presentation and Reports- None. 

Public Comment- None. 

Consent Agenda 
1. Approval of the June 17, 2020, Regular Meeting Minutes
MOTION by Comm Musta, seconded by Comm Bush to approve the Consent
Agenda. 

All in favor. 

Agenda Items 
1. U.S. District Court Substance Abuse Testing Services

MOTION by Comm Nichols, seconded by Comm Musta to approve the U.S. District
Court Substance Abuse Testing Service purchase order 0646-21-TS20 beginning
October 1, 2020 and authorize the Chairman to sign the purchase order on behalf of
the County.

Roll call: Motion passed unanimously.

2. NMCAA Contract Agreement for Project Income

16



DRAFT

Wexford County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting * Wednesday, July 1, 2020 

Page | 2 

MOTION by Comm Bengelink, seconded by Comm Nichols to approve the Contract 
for Services with Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency for recaptured 
Program Income funds and authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement on behalf 
of the County. 

Roll Call: Motion passed 8-0. 

3. Resolution 20-19 Supporting House Resolution 277
MOTION by Comm Bengelink, seconded by Comm Potter to approve Resolution
20-19 Supporting House Resolution 277 A Resolution Discouraging Local Units Of
Government From Defunding Or Abolishing Their Local Police Department.

Roll Call: Motion passed unanimously. 

4. POAM 312 Letter of Understanding-Vacation
MOTION by Comm Nichols, seconded by Comm Bengelink to approve the POAM 
312 Letter of Understanding regarding vacation hours and authorize the Chairman
and Sheriff to sign the Letter of Understanding on behalf of the County.

Roll Call: Motion passed unanimously.

5. Budget Amendment
MOTION by Comm Musta, seconded by Comm Bush to approve the budget
amendment dated 7/1/2020. 

7/1/2020 
Wexford County Board of Commissioners 
Amendments to the 2020 Budget 

Adj # Acct Acct Description  Revenue   Expense  a. 
20200701 295.682.539.00 State Grant $25,000 

295.682.930.05 Veteran Expo ($10,000) 
295.682.800.00 Contracted Services $10,000 
295.682.930.03 CVSF-ER 1,000 
295.682.727.00 Office Supplies 9,000 
295.682.930.06 New Freedom 15,000 
Additional funding received for the State Grant 

One Commissioner questioned what New Freedom was. It was explained that that is the 
bus services provided. 

Roll Call: Motion passed 8-0. 

Administrator’s Report-  
Administrator Koch provided the Board with a written report and added that there are 142 
Executive Orders, 3 of which were pre-pandemic.  

17



DRAFT

Wexford County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting * Wednesday, July 1, 2020 

Page | 3 

She also explained that the information regarding the grant for reimbursement of first 
responder’s pay has not been released yet and will be based on a first come, first serve 
basis. 

Copies of the audit were emailed to everyone that day, and everything looks good. 
Rehmann is unable to do in person presentations, but would be available to do them by 
Zoom. The options are to wait for them to be able to come in person or set up a 
presentation via Zoom. The Board opted to have the audit presented via Zoom. 

The RFP’s were sent out to replace the windows in the historic portion of the courthouse. 
Five companies came for the walk through. Bids are due on Thursday. 

Correspondence- 

1. Annual Report of Land Sale-Kristi Nottingham

Public Comments-None.

Liaison Reports- 

Comm Nichols attended a District 10 Health Department meeting. All the information is 
available online.

Comm Hurlburt attended a Road Commission meeting.

Comm Taylor attended a District 10 Health Department meeting, as well.

Board Comments

Comm Bengelink read a quote from Ronald Reagan.  

Comm Nichols congratulated Joe Porterfield for the great work on the audit and the 
recognition he received. She also wished Comm Townsend a Happy Birthday coming up 
on the 8th.  

Comm Townsend thanked Comm Nichols for the birthday wishes, and also asked about 
presents. He also shared a quote from John Wayne. 

Chairman’s Comments 

Comm Taylor thanked everyone for coming. 

Adjourn 

MOTION by Comm Potter, seconded by Comm Nichols to adjourn at 4:11 p.m. 

All in favor. 

___________________________ ____________________________ 
Gary Taylor, Chairperson  Alaina Nyman, County Clerk 

18



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM 

FROM: Finance Committee 
FOR MEETING DATE: July 15, 2020 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Calendar 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 
The FY 2021 Draft Budget Calendar is presented for consideration. The calendar has been 
condensed and pushed back significantly to allow us to adapt the budget if we have revenue 
reductions from the State of Michigan. 

A budgeting process that officially begins in October also allows us to take into account three 
calendar quarters of 2020 expenses and revenues. In addition, it is hoped that we will have final 
costs for health insurance by October. 

Communication has taken place with the elected and appointed department heads regarding the 
revised calendar. All understood the need for the change, none objected strongly, and some were 
very pleased to be able to wait until the State of Michigan’s budget is (theoretically) finalized.  

The proposed calendar anticipates approval of the budget resolution at the second scheduled 
December meeting, which is the same meeting at which the 2020 budget resolution was 
approved. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
The Finance Committee recommends the full board approve the FY 2021 budget calendar. 

J.1.

19



WEXFORD COUNTY
FISCAL YEAR 2021 BUDGET CALENDAR

Date Time

07/09/20 4:00 PM
Finance Committee requested to recommend 2021 budget calendar for discussion 
and approval at the following regular Board of Commissioners meeting.

07/15/20 4:00 PM Board of Commissioners considers approval of 2021 budget calendar.

07/16/20 --
Administrator distributes budget calendar to department heads. Departments 
begin to gather information for their budgets.

09/23/20 4:00 PM
Finance Committee recommends 2021 departmental budget targets for discussion 
and approval at the following regular Board of Commissioners meeting.

10/07/20 4:00 PM
Board of Commissioners approves budget targets for departments to follow in 
submitting requested budgets.

10/08/20 --
Administrator to distribute budget target information and blank 2021 budget 
worksheets (or BS&A instructions) to departments/offices.

10/23/20 --
Departments/Elected Offices submit completed budget requests and narratives to 
Administrator.

10/23 to
11/11

-- Adminstrator works with deptartment heads to reach the BOC's targets.

11/12/20 4:00 PM
Administrator provides the Finance Committee with a draft of requested & 
recommended budgets for discussion and review at the next Finance meeting.

11/19/20 4:00 PM
SPECIAL meeting: Finance Comm. reviews budgets, hears appeals from department 
heads, provides any necessary direction to the Administrator for budget changes, 
after which the Administrator will work w/ dept. heads to revise.

11/25/20 4:00 PM
Finance Committee recommends budget for consideration by the Board of 
Commissioners.

12/02/20 4:00 PM Administrator presents budget to Board of Commissioners.

12/05/20 9:00 AM Public Hearing notice in Cadillac News.

12/16/20 4:00 PM
Public Hearing, consideration of approval of the budget by BOC, and adoption of 
the General Appropriations Act.

Finance Committee: Mike Musta (Chair), Brian Potter, Gary Taylor, Julie Theobald

NOTE:  Meeting dates may be revised and meeting dates may be added.

20

nkijorski
New Stamp



S Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri S S Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri S S Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri S
1 2 3 4 2 3 4 5

BOC mtg

6 7 1
/
8

1 2

BOC mtg

3 4 5

5 6 7 8 9
Fin. rec. 

calendar

10 11 9 10 11 12 13

Finance

14 15 6 7 8 9 10

Finance

11 12

12 13 14 15
BOC  app 
calendar

16
Admin -

clndr; dpts-
inf

17 18 16 17 18 19

BOC mtg

20 21 22 13 14 15 16

BOC mtg

17 18 19

19 20 21 22

Finance

23 24 25 23 24 25 26

Finance

27 28 29 20 21 22 23
Fin. rec.  
budget 
targets

24 25 26

26 27 28 29 30 30 31 27 28 29 30

S Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri S S Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri S S Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri S
1 2 3 1 2 3 4

BOC mtg

5 6 7 1 2
BOC 

Admin & 
budget

3 4
Pblc hrng 

notice 
12/5

5

4 5 6 7
BOC apprv 

targets

Fin.   8
Admin 

send xls & 
targets

9 10 8 9 10 11 12
Draft 

budget to 
Fin.

13 14 6 7 8 9 10

Finance

11 12

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18

BOC mtg

19
SPCL Fin

bdgt rvw, 
appeals

20 21 13 14 15 16
BOC 

adopts 
budget

17 18 19

18 19 20 21

BOC mtg

22 23
Dept. 

budgets to 
Admin

24 22 23 24 25
Fin. 

rec. bdgt 
to BOC

26

Thnksgvg

27 28 20 21 22 23

Finance

24 25 26

25 26 27 28

Finance

29 30 31 29 30 27 28 29 30

Finance

31

July 2020 August 2020 September 2020

October 2020 November 2020 December 2020

21



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM 

FROM:  Finance Committee 

FOR MEETING DATE: July 15, 2020 

SUBJECT: Historic 1913 Courthouse Windows Project 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 
A Request for Proposals, RFP, was published June 25, 2020 through June 27, 2020 in the Cadillac 
News.  Addendum 1 was issued on June 26, 2020.  Addendum 2 was issued on July 2, 2020, prior to 
receiving any bids.  

Five firms attended the mandatory pre-bid site visit meeting on Tuesday, June 30. 

The Purchasing Committee consisting of Commissioner Musta, County Administrator Koch, and 
Maintenance Director Kerr were present at the bid opening on Thursday, July 8, 2020 at 3:30 p.m. 
Chairman Taylor was also present.   

One bid was received by City Glass Shop, Inc. Additional clarification is needed, and Ms. Koch and 
Mr. Kerr will be speaking with the owner.  Once this information is obtained, it will be provided to 
the board. 

The Bid Submission Form and additional information is attached for review. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Finance Committee recommends the full board award the bid to City Glass and instruct the 
Administrator to present a contract for approval with City Glass at the August 5 meeting. 

J.2.

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM 

FROM: Finance Committee 
FOR MEETING DATE: July 15, 2020 
SUBJECT: Canteen Food Services Agreement 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 
Canteen Services of Northern Michigan provides daily meals for the Wexford County jail 
inmates. The existing agreement with Canteen Services is effective September 1, 2017 through 
August 31, 2020. (See attached.) 

Section V(A) of the agreement lists a rate schedule that decreases its per meal price as the daily 
meal count increases. The contract was negotiated to coincide with the opening of the new jail 
and an increased inmate population in Wexford County. The rate schedule’s low end is a daily 
meal count from 102-117 ($3.07/meal) and tops out at 404 + ($1.59/meal). 

One of the many results of COVID-19 is a significantly reduced jail inmate population. Sheriff 
Trent Taylor reported at the June 23, 2020 Human Resources/Public Safety Committee meeting 
that the jail population was 38; prior to the pandemic the population had been 110. 

Canteen Services has submitted an addendum to the agreement (see attached), asking that 
Wexford County agree to a temporary price increase of $0.30 per meal until the daily meal count 
returns to an average of 74, at which time the meal price would revert to the contracted amount.  

The budget for the line item 101-351-742.00 Kitchen Supplies is $250,000. January through May 
costs have been expensed to date, leaving an available balance of $176,978.66, just over 70%.  

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Finance Committee advises the full board approve the Canteen Services contract 
amendment. 

J.3.

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



From: Janet Koch
To: Jami Bigger
Subject: FW: Wexford County - Temporary Price Increase
Date: Thursday, July 2, 2020 10:04:03 AM
Attachments: image001.png

From: mstump@canteenservices.com <mstump@canteenservices.com>
Sent: Monday, June 29, 2020 10:11:19 AM
To: Mike Mcdaniel <mmcdaniel@wexfordcounty.org>
Subject: Wexford County - Temporary Price Increase

Good afternoon Lt. McDaniel,

I hope this finds you well, safe and healthy!

I wanted to follow-up on your recent discussion with Rich and Robin regarding the temporary
price increase.  As you are well aware, we are in challenging times and we are here to serve
Wexford County during the COVID-19 crisis.  We are working hard to provide the best inmate food
services for all of our facility partners throughout Michigan and Indiana.

Canteen Services is acutely aware that out of precaution, that most all of our clients have
significantly reduced their inmate population as a proactive measure to help stop the spread of
COVID-19.  With the reduction of the inmate population follows the reduction of inmate meals
required to service your needs; however, the program Canteen Services has in place is based on
meal quantities, hours of service, and labor requirements during ‘normal times’.  These reductions
have a direct impact on our operating budget and our goal is to continue servicing your needs
without disrupting the routine and stability within your facility.

Canteen Services is asking for your consideration for a temporary emergency meal price increase. 
I’ve attached Amendment I that provides some further details for your review. Canteen Services
feels this request will be for a short period of time as most of the jail populations will return to their
normal capacity.

Canteen Services wants to reassure you we are here, we are operational, and unwavering in our
commitment to you and our loyal customers. We recognize this request for support comes during
trying times. 

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if I can provide any further details.

Thanks again Lt. McDaniel and have a wonderful day!

Michael Stump
Vice President of Commissary &
Business Development
Tigg’s Canteen Services
616.450.5495
mstump@canteenservices.com

46

mailto:JKoch@wexfordcounty.org
mailto:jbigger@wexfordcounty.org
mailto:mstump@canteenservices.com
mailto:mstump@canteenservices.com
mailto:mmcdaniel@wexfordcounty.org
mailto:mstump@canteenservices.com



CANTEEN SERVICES, INC. 

        FOOD SERVICES CONTRACT 

AMENDMENT I 

This Amendment I to the Food Services Contract effective September 1, 2017 between the County of 
Wexford a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Michigan (‘County’), acting 
on behalf of the Wexford County Sheriff’s Department (‘Sheriff’), and Canteen Services of Northern 
Michigan, Inc., of which contract was subsequently acquired by, Canteen Services, Inc. on June 21, 
2019 (‘Canteen’) shall be effective June 28, 2020.  The parties do hereby mutually approve and agree 
to the following: 

TEMPORARY EMERGENCY MEAL PRICE INCREASE 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the significant reduction of inmate population, within the 
Wexford County Jail, caused by this unprecedented situation; Canteen finds it necessary to implement 
a Temporary Price Increase in order to maintain the level of food service provided to Wexford County.  
Effective June 28, 2020 an additional $0.30 per meal will be added to the current contracted meal 
price.  Wexford County Jail had been averaging 92 meals per meal service (Breakfast, Lunch, and 
Dinner); once the meal count returns to an average of 74 the meal price will revert back to the current 
contracted price.  While in effect Canteen will review this situation with County/Sheriff every 30 days.  

All terms and conditions of the Agreement not amended by this Amendment I remain the same. 

CANTEEN SERVICES, INC. WEXFORD COUNTY 

Authorized Signature Date Authorized Signature Date

  President 
Title Title 

  Jeffrey J. Tiggleman 
Printed Name Printed Name

47



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM 

FROM: Janet Koch, County Administrator 
FOR MEETING DATE: July 15, 2020 
SUBJECT: Procedure for Grant Applications 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 
The COVID-19 pandemic has created unusual circumstances with tracing numerous Executive 
Orders and protecting the health of our employees and community alike. 

Another unusual situation is extremely tight time frames to apply for some grants and other 
financial assistance. The need to coordinate applications is imperative so that we do not 
unknowingly duplicate reimbursement requests, which could easily disqualify the County from 
receiving needed financial assistance. 

A requirement that all grant applications be submitted to the Administration Office for review 
and then forwarded to the Board of Commissioners for approval (or subsequent ratification if the 
application time frame does not permit pre-approval by the Board) is being requested. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Administrator would like a motion from the Board of Commissioners supporting this 
request. 

J.4.

48



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM 

FROM: Finance Committee 
FOR MEETING DATE: July 15, 2020 
SUBJECT: Ratification of First Responder Hazard Pay Premium Program 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 
Janet Koch, County Administrator, communicated information to the Finance Committee on July 9 
regarding the First Responder Hazard Pay Premium Program (FRHPPP). The program is funded 
under the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and is administered 
by the State of Michigan. 

This first-come, first-serve program reimburses/pays up to $1,000 in hazard payments to a number of 
employee types, including the following County personnel: law enforcement, corrections, and 
dispatchers. 

Details for the application were made available via Michigan’s Department of Treasury website on 
Wednesday, July 8. As the competition for this reimbursement/payment funding will be fierce, we 
submitted an application for all eligible County employees on Thursday, July 9. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Finance Committee recommends the full board ratify the FRHPPP application. 

J.5.

49



7/15/2020

Wexford County Board of Commissioners
Amendments to the 2020 Budget

Adj # Acct Acct Description Revenue Expense a.
20200702 101.215.702.03 Permanent Employees $650

101.215.860.00 Travel & Conferences ($650)
Step increase for an employee

J.6.

50



Administrator’s Report to the Board of Commissioners For the meeting of July 15, 2020 

Completed Projects/Tasks 

FOIA Requests:  The Administration Office received nine new Freedom of Information requests 
between June 27 and July 10. (It felt like a lot more than that, but three came in one day, 
which skewed our perceptions.) 

New Employees:  No new employees have started working at the County since the last Board 
of Commissioners meeting.  

Current Projects/Tasks 

2019 Audit:  The audit was completed and submitted to the appropriate places a full day 
ahead of the June 30 deadline. Steve Peacock from Rehmann will appear in front of the Board 
at the August 19 meeting to present the audit. 

First Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program:  Eligible employees for this first-come, first-
serve program include law enforcement, corrections, and dispatchers. (Other eligible 
employees include firefighters, EMTs and paramedics.) The program is funded under the 
federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. Details for the application 
were made available through Michigan’s Department of Treasury on Wednesday, July 8. As the 
competition for this reimbursement/payment funding will be fierce, we submitted an 
application for all eligible County employees on Thursday, July 9. 

Public Safety and Public Health Payroll Reimbursement Program:  The application deadline for 
this program is July 17. This is not a first-come, first-serve program, but there is a set amount 
of funding available. It is expected that awards will be prorated. At this point there is much 
uncertainty about eligible expenses; we are hoping for clarification on Monday, July 13 
regarding this CARES Act-funded program. What information we have about eligible expenses 
will be brought to the July 15 meeting. 

Other COVID-19 Funding Possibilities:  The Sheriff’s Office is working on an application for 
Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding (CESF), which is funded through the U.S. 
Department of Justice. Also, Travis Baker, our Emergency Manager, is still compiling 
information for reimbursement costs eligible through FEMA. 

Window Replacement Project:  The Finance Committee is recommending that the Board 
accept a bid from City Glass. If the Board approves the bid, we should have new windows in 
the Historic Courthouse before the snow flies. 

Additional Notes/Meetings 

Cadillac Lofts:  Adam Kerr, Maintenance Director, and I were given a quick tour of the building 
by Dean DeKryger of DK Design. Though we were there primarily to look at the windows, Dean 
took the time to show us a few of the very nice residential units. FYI: the view of Mitchell 
Street from top floor’s northwest unit is fantastic! 

Respectfully submitted, 
Janet Koch, County Administrator 

K. 

51



ST ATE OF MICHi GAN Received by Wexford County

BEFORE THE MICHIGAN PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
NOTICE OF HEARING JUL O 2 2020 

FOR THE ELECTRIC & GAS CUSTOMERS OF 
CONSUMERS ENERGY COMP ANY Administration Office

CASE NO. U-20702 

• Consumers Energy Company requests Michigan Public Service Commission's approval for
authority to reconcile its 2019 Energy Waste Reduction plan costs associated with the plan
approved in Case No. U-18261.

• The information below describes how a person may participate in this case.

• You may call or write Consumers Energy Company, One Energy Plaza, Jackson, MI 49201,
517-788-0550 for a free copy of its application. Any person may review the documents at
the offices of Consumers Energy Company.

• A pre-hearing will be held:

DATE/TIME: 

BEFORE: 

LOCATION: 

PARTICIPATION: 

Wednesday, July 1, 2020 at 10:30 AM 

Administrative Law Judge Kandra Robbins 

Michigan Public Service Commission 
7109 West Saginaw Highway 
Lansing, Michigan 48917 

Any interested person may attend and participate. The hearing 
site is accessible, including handicapped parking. Persons 
needing any accommodation to participate should contact the 
Commission's Executive Secretary at (517) 284-8090 in 
advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other 
assistance. 

The Michigan Public Service Commission (Commission) will hold a pre-hearing to consider 
Consumers Energy Company's (Consumers Energy) June 1, 2020 application requesting approval to: 1) 
reconcile its 2019 Energy Waste Reduction (EWR) plan costs; 2) approve the collection of a 
financial performance incentive payment for both the natural gas and electric EWR plan; 3) approve 
the conversion of 63,715 EWR Credits into Renewable Energy Credits in 2019 for use in meeting 
Consumers Energy's renewable energy requirements under Act 295; and 4) other relief. 

52



All documents filed in this case shall be submitted electronically through the Commission's E
Dockets website at: michigan.gov/mpscedockets. Requirements and instructions for filing can be 
found in the User Manual on the E-Dockets help page. Documents may also be submitted, in Word 
or PDF format, as an attachment to an email sent to: mpscedockets@michigan.gov. If you require 
assistance prior to e-filing, contact Commission staff at (517) 284-8090 or by email at: 
mpscedockets@michigan.gov. 

Any person wishing to intervene and become a party to the case shall electronically file a 
petition to intervene with this Commission by June 24, 2020. (Interested persons may elect to file 
using the traditional paper format.) The proof of service shall indicate service upon Consumers 
Energy's Legal Department - Regulatory Group, One Energy Plaza, Jackson, MI 49201. 

Any person wishing to appear at the hearing to make a statement of position without becoming 
a party to the case may participate by filing an appearance. To file an appearance, the individual must 
attend the hearing and advise the presiding administrative law judge of his or her wish to make a 
statement of position. All information submitted to the Commission in this matter becomes public 
information, thus available on the Michigan Public Service Commission's website, and subject to 
disclosure. Please do not include information you wish to remain private. 

Requests for adjournment must be made pursuant to Michigan Office of Administrative 
Hearings and Rules R 792.10422 and R 792.10432. Requests for further information on adjournment 
should be directed to (517) 284-8130. 

A copy of Consumers Energy Company's application may be reviewed on the Commission's 
website at: michigan.gov/mpscedockets, and at the office of Consumers Energy Company. For more 
information on how to participate in a case, you may contact the Commission at the above address or 
by telephone at (517) 284-8090. 

Jurisdiction is pursuant to 1909 PA 106, as amended, MCL 460.551 et seq.; 1909 PA 300, as 

amended, MCL 462.2 et seq.; 1919 PA 419, as amended, MCL 460.54 et seq.; 1939 PA 3, as 

amended, MCL 460.1 et seq.; 1969 PA 306, as amended, MCL 24.201 et seq.; 2008 PA 295, as 

amended, MCL 460.1001 et seq., and Parts 1 & 4 of the Michigan Office of Administrative Hearings 
and Rules, Mich. Admin Code, R 792.10106 and R 792.10401 through R 792.10448. 

2006-C 

[THE MICHIGAN PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION MAY 

APPROVE, REJECT, OR AMEND PROPOSALS MADE BY 

CONSUMERS ENERGY.] 

53


	G.1. MMMEG 2019 Annual Report
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.1.a. Annual_Report_Wexford 2019 (002)
	I. BOC Minutes-July 1
	J.1. FY 2021 Draft Budget Calendar
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	J.1.a. 2021 Budget Calendar COVID-19 DRAFT
	2021 Original

	J.1.b. 2021 Budget Calendar COVID-19 DRAFT v5
	Version 2

	J.2. Bid Award Historic Courthouse Windows
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	J.2.a. City Glass Bid Submission
	J.3. Canteen Food Services Agreement
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	J.3.a. Canteen Services of Northern Michigan - Jail Food Services Contract expires 8-31-2020
	J.3.b. Email Wexford County - Temporary Price Increase
	J.3.c. Wexford Co Food Services Amendment
	J.4. Procedure for Grant Applications
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	J.5. Ratification of First Responder Grant
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	J.6. Budget Amendments
	07_15_20

	K. Admin Report 2020-07-15
	L. Correspondense from SOM Public Service Commission



